
   

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Zoning Board of Appeals                      June 20, 2005      Page 1 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF LYON 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS  
MEETING MINUTES 

June 20, 2005 
 
 

Approved as submitted July 18, 2005. 

 

DATE:   June 20, 2005 

TIME:  7:30 PM 

PLACE:  58000 Grand River 

 

 Call to Order:  Mr. Erwin called the meeting to order at 7:32 PM. 

 

         Roll Call:  Present: William Erwin, Chairman 

Michael Barber 

Michael Hawkins 

Troy Schilling, Trustee 

Tony Raney 

       

                   Also Present:  Chris Olson, Township Superintendent 

      Al Hogan, Township Building Department  

       

    Guests:  16 

 
1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
  - Regular Meeting of May 16, 2005 

  

 Mr. Barber made a motion to approve the minutes from the regular meeting of May 16, 2005 

 as written.  Mr. Schilling supported the motion. 

 

Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

      Nays: None 

 

   Motion approved. 

 
2. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 
 Vistal Land & Home Development, Aldo Stenta, applicant 

For 52451 Caddy Lane.  Sidwell 21-13-300-021.  Zoned PD Planned Development.  Applicant  

requests a variance from the 50’ setback requirement from a wetland/watercourse.  Per Ordinance 

No. 91A-03, Part VI, Wetlands and Watercourse Setbacks, Sub-section 2.   

 

Mr. Erwin noted that Mr. Stenta submitted a revised plan which moves the dimensions of the  

building back beyond the floodplains. 

 

 Mr. Stenta stated that they reduced the size of the overhead separating the house from the 

 garage and they made one of the garages smaller.  He stated that they did shift the house a  

 little from the left side to the right side in order to achieve the 50’ setback from the water. 

 

 Mr. Olson stated that from the plans, it looks like there is one encroachment into the waterline 

 setback, a corner of the terrace.  Mr. Stenta stated that this is an open terrace.  He stated that 

 he did not take this into consideration when he was working on fitting within the setbacks.  There 



   

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Zoning Board of Appeals                      June 20, 2005      Page 2 
 

 was brief discussion about the terrace encroachment.  It was noted that it is less than 5’. 

 

 Mr. Hawkins questioned what variances the applicant is looking for.  He questioned if the  

 variance needed is for the residence being outside the established building envelope for a 

 planned development.  Mr. Stenta responded that this is correct.  Mr. Hawkins questioned how 

 far out of the building envelope is this structure.  Mr. Stenta responded that he does not have the 

 exact calculation with him tonight.   

 

There was discussion as to how much is outside the building envelope.  It was estimated that it  

would be no more than 300 square feet.  Mr. Olson noted that he felt that the Board’s intent  

would be clear if they referenced this plan.  Mr. Hawkins stated that they need to be specific as 

to which point they attach the dimensional variance to.  He noted that there would be three 

dimensions:   

1.  13.9’ for the north garage and would only apply to the garage; 

2.  9.9’ for the south garage and would only apply to the garage; 

3.  7’ on the west side. 

 Mr. Hawkins discussed what part of the ordinance applies to building outside the footprint.  He 

 questioned if this is a planned development.  Mr. Olson responded that this is in White Horse Lake, 

 which is a planned development.  Mr. Hawkins questioned if the building envelope is a planned 

 development criteria or is an ordinance criteria.  Mr. Olson responded that the building envelope 

 would have been set by planned development. 

 

 Mr. Hawkins asked Mr. Stenta if they were to give him some specific definitions of dimensions, i.e., 

 100 to 300 square feet, would he be able to build within them.  Mr. Stenta responded that he does 

 not believe that it would be more than 300 square feet.  He noted that he would be happy to  

 provide the Board with the exact size. 

 

 Mr. Hawkins made a motion in regard to Vistal Land Development, Aldo Stenta, applicant for  

 52451 Caddy Lane, Sidwell 21-13-300-021.  This is a zoned planned development, White Horse Lake. 

 The applicant has requested a variance from the established planned development footprint,  

 what is now referred to as Lot 4.  He would recommend to the Board that in regards to the  

 applicant’s request: 

1.  North garage, that a variance be granted for the north garage to extend a  

     maximum of 13.9’ north of the building envelope; 

2.  South garage, that a variance be granted for the south garage to extend a 

     maximum of 9.9’ from the planned development established building envelope; 

3.  South elevation of the building, that a 7’ variance be granted. 

 The applicant has demonstrated that he can work within the parameters of long established  

 building envelope for this property to maximize the use of their property and their application is 

 reasonable and fair relative to allowing the applicant to build on the property.  Mr. Barber  

supported the motion. 

 

Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

      Nays: None 

 

   Motion approved. 

 

 Mr. Hawkins made a motion in regard to Vistal Land Development, Aldo Stenta, applicant for  

 52451 Caddy Lane, Sidwell 21-13-300-021.  In regard to Lot 4, White Horse Lake Planned 

 Development, it is recommended to the Board that in regard to ordinance 91A-03, Part VI,  

 Wetlands and Watercourse Setbacks, Sub-section 2, that the applicant be granted a 30 square 

 foot variance to allow the terrace portion only of the residence on the left side to extend into 

 what is considered a wetland, watercourse area.  The applicant has demonstrated that he has 

 moved the building within reasonable course to stay within the 50’ from the water line dimension 

 and this will allow him a reasonable use of his property and be consistent in design for this  



   

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Zoning Board of Appeals                      June 20, 2005      Page 3 
 

 facility.  Mr. Raney supported the motion. 

 

   Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

      Nays: None 

 

   Motion approved. 

 
 Lyon Mechanical/Dan Cheresko, 30100 South Hill Road 

Sidwell 21-02-376-023.  Zoned I-1, Light Industrial District.  Applicant is requesting a variance of 31 

feet from  west front setback and 42 feet from south front setback for an addition to an existing 

non-conforming building.  Per section 36.2 Schedule of Regulations. 

 

 Mr. Cheresko explained that they originally came before the ZBA but was informed that they  

 needed to go to the Planning Commission first.  He stated that they brought in three different 

designs (north, south, west) to the Planning Commission.  He stated that the general consensus 

of the Planning Commission was that having the addition on the west side was the best for  

aesthetics.  He displayed and explained a rendering of what the building will look like from  

South Hill Road with the addition on the west side. 

 

Mr. Cheresko stated that he purchased this building always with the intention of adding office 

space to it.  He stated that he was under the impression that there was enough room to add 

office space, but after purchasing the property, and looking in to adding on they discovered  

that there was an error in the survey. 

 

Mr. Cheresko noted that he is the owner of Crossroads Center in New Hudson.  He stated that he 

fixed the Crossroads building up and would like to do the same to the new building on South Hill 

Road.   

 

Mr. Barber summarized the discussions on this issue at the Planning Commission level for the other 

members of the ZBA.   

 

Mr. Erwin asked if there were any public comments regarding this issue.  There were none 

 

Mr. Erwin briefly discussed the criteria that the ZBA has to look at in order to grant a variance. 

Mr. Hawkins stated that in the Township Planner’s letter, it indicates that there is another option 

for this addition. 

 

Mr. Cheresko briefly discussed the surrounding properties and indicated that this addition will not 

have an adverse affect on any of them.  He stated that he is looking for a little flexibility here.  He 

stated that he does not want to add office space to the north side. 

 

Mr. Hawkins stated that what the applicant is asking them to do is grant a variance to extend a 

non-conformity.  He stated that Mr. Erwin has noted that this is a very common issue relative to the 

Township.  He stated that they do not feel that it is required or necessary based on several Planner’s 

and Designer’s recommendations.  He stated that being nice to the applicant would be great, but 

it would be negligent of them not following the guidelines established by the Township Trustees. 

 

Mr. Hawkins made a motion in regard to Lyon Mechanical/Dan Cheresko, 30100 South Hill Road, 

Sidwell No. 21-02-376-023. The applicant has requested a variance from setbacks on the west side 

and south side of a commercial business.  The applicant has not demonstrated sufficient  

information to allow or convince the ZBA that the extension of an existing non-conformity is  

justified in this application.  It is recommended that the applicant’s request for both variances be 

denied.  There was no support of the motion. 

 

There was brief discussion amongst the Board members regarding the issue and the motion that 



   

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Zoning Board of Appeals                      June 20, 2005      Page 4 
 

was made.  It was stated again that there are other options on the property.  Mr. Erwin noted that 

the other options may not be what the applicant wants, but they are there. 

 

Mr. Hawkins made a motion in regard to Lyon Mechanical/Dan Cheresko, 30100 South Hill Road, 

Sidwell No. 21-02-376-023.  After further discussion amongst the Board and review of allowable 

modifications to non-conforming structures or uses, it would not appear that there is an option 

within the ordinance to allow the extension of an existing non-conformity in this facility.  It is 

recommended that the request for variances from the west setback and the south front setback 

be denied.  The Township Planner’s review letter has noted that the owner does have other options 

within the property limits that would not extend the existing non-conformity of this facility or this  

property.  It is recommended that the variance requests be denied.  Mr. Raney supported the  

motion. 

 

Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

      Nays: None 

 

   Motion approved. 

 
 K. Janiga/Bryan Smith & Beth Woodward, 29740 Pine Tree 

 Sidwell 21-05-401-016.  Zoned R-1.0, Residential-Agriculture.  Applicant is requesting a side yard  

 setback variance of 1’8” to allow construction of an addition to a non-conforming structure per 

 Section 13.05, Modification to Non-conforming Uses or Structures.  Side yard setback of 30’ required  

 under Sec. 36.2, Schedule of Regulations.  Variance will allow a 28.4’ side yard setback. 

 

 Tim McCotter, K. Janiga Architects, explained that this is an existing home on residential property. 

 He stated that they are proposing a 230 square foot addition to the rear of the home.  He stated 

 that they are requesting a variance for the extension of an existing non-conforming residence. 

 

 Mr. Hawkins questioned when the home was built.  Mr. Smith responded that it was built in 1979.  He 

 noted that he is the second owner of the home.  Mr. Hawkins questioned when the zoning  

 ordinances that apply changed.  Mr. Olson responded that it was in 1991. 

 

 Mr. Erwin asked if there were any public comments.  There were none. 

 

 Mr. Barber made a motion in regard to K. Janiga/Bryan Smith & Beth Woodward, 29740 Pine Tree, 

 Sidwell 21-05-401-016, that a modification to the non-conforming structure be allowed according 

 to Section 13.05, to allow construction of an addition to a non-conforming structure.  A 1.8’ side 

 yard setback variance from the required 30’ is approved.  The addition to the home is to the east 

and the non-conforming area is to the north, therefore, the addition would not be increasing the 

non-conforming use.  Mr. Raney supported the motion. 

 

Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

      Nays: None 

 

   Motion approved. 

 
 Keith Shurmur, 52975 Nine Mile Road 

 Sidwell #21-36-100-020.  Zoned R-0.5, Single Family Residential.  Applicant is requesting a 3.15 foot  

 side yard variance from the required 15’ to allow for completion of a home which is under 

 construction.  Per Section 36.2, Schedule of Regulations. 

 

Mr. Shurmur explained that this is his first house and when he staked it out he did not hire a survey 

company.  He stated that he is leaning that he probably should have done this.  He stated that 

he did hire a survey company after the fact and was told that the house under construction is too 

close to the property line. 



   

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Zoning Board of Appeals                      June 20, 2005      Page 5 
 

 

Mr. Erwin questioned how much of the house is already built.  Mr. Shurmur responded that basically 

the whole house is built.  He stated that Al Hogan, Building Department, has to come out and do 

the final inspection. 

 

Mr. Schilling questioned if the house was built to be sold.  Mr. Shurmur responded that this was his 

original intention, but has learned that because of the capital gains issue, he is going to move into 

the home for a couple years before selling. 

 

There was discussion with regard to the survey.  Mr. Erwin questioned what stage of construction  

were they in when Mr. Hogan informed the applicant that he needed a survey.  Mr. Shurmur 

responded that they were in final. 

 

Mr. Erwin asked Mr. Hogan why this problem was not found earlier.  Mr. Hogan responded that 

there were stakes there that measured at 15’ to the edge of the overhang.  He noted that the  

stakes were placed in the wrong spot on two occasions.   

 

Mr. Barber questioned who built the house.  Mr. Shurmur responded that he has done all the 

construction himself with the help of some friends.  Mr. Barber asked Mr. Shurmur if he is a builder. 

Mr. Shurmur responded that he is in the landscaping business.  He stated that he rented an 

excavator from a friend and dug the basement himself.  He indicated that he could have miss dug. 

 

Mr. Erwin asked if there were any public comments. 

 

Mike Anderson, 52905 Nine Mile Road, stated that he did not help stake out the property.  He  

stated that they were kind of fuzzy as to where the property line was.  He stated that he was not 

exactly sure where the property line was and did not really care where it was for the purpose of  

clearing.  He stated that what he looked at was a big green wall of trees and shrubs.  He stated 

that Mr. Shurmur assured him that he would replace a lot of the cleared area with landscaping, 

which has not been done.  He further discussed the landscaping issue which was first talked about 

in March. 

 

Mr. Erwin questioned how much of the home was built in March.  Mr. Anderson responded that the 

foundation was in.  Mr. Hogan stated that the house was already roughed in at that time. 

 

Mr. Anderson stated that the only issue he has with this is the replacement of the landscaping.  He 

stated that he had a discussion with Mr. Shurmur today who assured him that he will landscape 

the area.  He stated that he would like to work with Mr. Shurmur in accomplishing this so that it is  

mutually agreeable between them.  

 

Mr. Anderson noted that he has already spent $3,000 in landscaping to try and get some privacy. 

He indicated that he did have some pictures of what he has done.  He stated that he would like to 

have it carried on.  He stated that what he is proposing that Mr. Shurmur do, will not only benefit 

him but it will also benefit Mr. Shurmur. 

 

Robert Stevenson, 22255 Chubb Road, stated that the house is very nice but feels the same way  

with the wooded area being cleared.  He stated that he has known Mr. Shurmur for a long time 

and felt that he is a honest person.  He stated that he does not believe that Mr. Shurmur would 

intentionally place his house into the setback area. 

 

Mr. Hawkins stated that there are a couple options.  One is to allow them more time to work out the 

issue with the landscaping.  He noted that Mr. Hogan cannot issue a final building permit until this 

issue is cleared.   

 

Mr. Erwin felt that tabling this issue for a month to allow the applicant to work out the landscaping 



   

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Zoning Board of Appeals                      June 20, 2005      Page 6 
 

issue with the neighbor is a good idea. 

 

Mr. Shurmur stated that there is only a spot that is no longer than the head desk that needs to be 

taken care of.  He noted that there is already grass there, but that there is some erosion there also. 

He stated that he is willing to state for the record that he will take care of this area. 

 

Mr. Shurmur stated that they a now living in the Haas Lake Trailer park.  He noted that the tornado 

came through there last week and that he would really like to get the certificate of occupancy for 

this house so that he can move his family out of the trailer park. 

 

Mr. Olson felt that Mr. Shurmur is missing the point.  He stated that by the ZBA giving him a month, 

it is really a gift because there really is no hardship.  He stated that there is no reason why the house 

shouldn’t be within the setbacks.  Mr. Erwin stated that the other option would be to move the 

house. 

 

A resident questioned what would happen if the ZBA did not grant the variance.  Mr. Erwin  

responded that the house would have to be moved.  Mr. Hawkins stated that it is either move the 

house or someone would have to sell Mr. Shurmur a small piece of property so that he will comply 

with the setback requirements. 

 

 Mr. Hawkins made a motion in regard to Keith Shurmur, 52975 Nine Mile Road, Sidwell 21-36-100-020, 

 that the applicant’s request for a 3.15’ variance from the side yard setback requirements be tabled 

until the July, 2005 meeting.  Mr. Raney supported the motion. 

 

Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

      Nays: None 

 

   Motion approved. 

 
3. GENERAL BOARD DISCUSSION  NONE 

 
4. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 Mr. Erwin adjourned the meeting at 8:47 PM. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

Deby Cothery 
Deby Cothery  

Recording Secretary        


